
       PRESCOTT CITY COUNCIL 
       STUDY SESSION 
  TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 2, 2008 
  PRESCOTT, ARIZONA 
 
 
MINUTES OF THE JOINT STUDY SESSION/SPECIAL MEETING OF THE PRESCOTT 
CITY COUNCIL held on SEPTEMBER 2, 2008 in the COUNCIL CHAMBERS located at 
CITY HALL, 201 SOUTH CORTEZ STREET, Prescott, Arizona. 
 

  CALL TO ORDER 
  
 Mayor Wilson called the meeting to order at 3:00 p.m. 
 

 INTRODUCTIONS                                             
 

 INVOCATION: Reverend Julia McKenna Johnson  
 
 Reverend Julia McKenna Johnson  gave the invocation.  
                   

  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:      Councilman Roecker 
 
 Councilman Roecker led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

  ROLL CALL: 
 
 Present:      Absent: 
 
   Mayor Wilson      None     

    Councilman Bell        
  Councilman Lamerson 
  Councilwoman Lopas 
  Councilman Luzius 
  Councilman Roecker 

 Councilwoman Suttles 
 

 SUMMARY OF CURRENT OR RECENT EVENTS  
   
City Manager Steve Norwood said the City of Prescott hosted a national softball 
tournament and had over 800 players from 15 different states. He said the hotels 
were packed and the restaurants were packed so it was a great boost for the 
local economy.   
 
Councilwoman Suttles said she was able to go to the morning breakfast with the 
coaches and managers welcoming them to Prescott. She said later in the 
afternoon she attended two of the games out at Pioneer Park and the grounds 



Prescott City Council Joint Study  
Session/Special Meeting – September 2, 2008                                                  Page 2 
 

were just beautiful. She said she was also downtown and she saw softball 
players.  She thanked Debbie Horton and said it would be nice to bring that back 
to Prescott, the Softball Capital of the World.    

    
Mayor Wilson said he spoke to the top ASA official and the head umpire and they 
had never been in Prescott before.  He said they indicated they would bring it up 
to their Board because they were very impressed with the City’s facilities.   
 

I. PRESENTATION 
 
 A. Presentation by Arizona Public Service on Upgrades to Existing 

Infrastructure in Downtown Prescott. 
    

Mike Johnson with Arizona Public Service said they would be giving a 
presentation on a project APS is planning for early in 2009. He then 
introduced Mike De Witt, Manager for their Line Siting processes.   
 
Mr. De Witt said he is out of the Phoenix APS office and works in their 
Transmission and Facility Line Siting group. He said typically at APS on 
the much higher voltage, bigger lines than they are talking about today 
they go through a process that they ultimately take before the Corporation 
Commission. He said 69kV lines such as this one does not fall under the 
direct jurisdiction of the Corporation Commission in Arizona for siting, but 
they are going to use a very similar process that they use for the high 
voltage lines.  Mr. De Witt gave the presentation, Prescott City to White 
Spar 69kV Project, Exhibit A attached hereto and made a part hereof. 

   
Councilwoman Suttles asked what the poles will look like and how much 
bigger they will be than the existing poles.   

    
Mr. De Witt said APS is doing about seven or eight simulations on all the 
different identified routes to give residents and the City Council an idea of 
what this will look like. He said there are going to be more wires on the 
poles and they will be a little bit taller. He said they will be replacing the 
wooden poles with steel poles. Mr. De Witt said they will have a number of 
simulations that represent the project at the open houses.   

    
  Councilwoman Suttles asked if there is any way the lines can be buried.   
 

Mr. De Witt said it will be very difficult because they are in an area that 
already has a lot of underground interferences and the cost of burying is 
very expensive.  
 
Councilwoman Suttles asked how long such a large project will take with it 
starting at the end of the year.   
 



Prescott City Council Joint Study  
Session/Special Meeting – September 2, 2008                                                  Page 3 
 

Mr. De Witt said APS hopes to have the public process complete by the 
end of the year. He said they have already done a little preliminary 
construction on some of the routes that were shown but if something else 
comes up during the process they want to be able to entertain that as a 
viable route. He said they would like to have design they can share with 
residents of Prescott and the City Council by the first of next year and then 
begin construction about the middle of 2009.   
 
Councilwoman Suttles said she plans to attend some of the open houses.  

    
Mayor Wilson said they can put information from APS on the City of 
Prescott website to advertise the public open houses. He said he believes 
the 69kV lines are significantly different than what he sees in his 
subdivision.   
 
Mr. De Witt said most of the residential feeder lines are 12kV lines and 
they generate a lot more heat. He said this is going to be two circuits of 
69kV lines so they are talking about two separate trenches with about 30 - 
40 feet of right of way.  He said with the existing interferences it would not 
only be very difficult to route but it would be very expensive.   

   
Mayor Wilson asked how much additional capacity will be added by this 
project.  

    
Craig Stegmire, the design supervisor for the project, said it essentially 
nearly doubles. He said they are trying to provide a second reliable source 
so they are not going to load up the second line to the extent of the first 
one. 
 
Mayor Wilson said the City gets redundancy in case of a failure plus they 
get additional capacity.    

   
Councilman Luzius said while he can understand the need for additional 
power he does not like to see the metal poles come because he thinks 
they are ugly. He said he would prefer to see it buried or some kind of 
cosmetic treatment done on the poles. He said they reflect the light of the 
sun and they do nothing to improve the aesthetics of the City.   

    
Mr. De Witt said one of the things they will have at the open house is a 
surface treatment example.  He said it is a self weathering pole, which is a 
steel pole with a rust type of color.  

    
Councilman Luzius said that is the type of treatment that has been used 
on guardrails for a number of years.  He asked why that was not done in 
the first place when they put all the galvanized poles up.   

    



Prescott City Council Joint Study  
Session/Special Meeting – September 2, 2008                                                  Page 4 
 

Mr. De Witt said it is actually a relatively new with regards to using it for 
visual treatment. He said it is one of the things that have come to light 
during some of the public processes. He said it minimizes the industrial 
look of the galvanized pole.   

 
B. Presentation on Capital Needs and One Cent Sales Tax Extension. 
    

Mr. Norwood introduced the eight minute presentation, which is in a video 
format to convey the message. He said a lot has changed over the last six 
to eight months since they started the process. He said they have a 
recommendation for the Council but they definitely want to get some 
Council direction.   
 
Mayor Wilson said the City is faced with tough issues and tough decisions. 
He said one of the things they have to look at is the issue of educating the 
public about the dilemma the City is in. He said when they look at the 
issue of $24,000,000 in the whole on roads in 2010 they need to address 
that one way or another.  Mayor Wilson said he sees two separate issues: 
one is the 1% sales tax extension for roads and open space and the 
second is the capital needs issue.    

   
Councilwoman Lopas said being affiliated with open space she has been 
talking with Trust for Public Land and they have been going under their 
own restructuring due to reduced revenues. She said they have a service 
they have offered the City of Prescott and they will do polling to survey the 
citizens for their input regarding these issues. She said she will be 
meeting with two of their representatives in Prescott in the next two days.  
Councilwoman Lopas said the service is free.    

   
Councilwoman Suttles asked how the poll is conducted. Councilwoman 
Lopas said that is what she will be finding out in the next few days.  
Councilwoman Suttles said she agrees with the polling.     

    
Councilman Lamerson said he agrees with the polling. He said the fact is 
they are going to have to continue the 1% sale tax in order to take of the 
roads and the lack of revenue. He said he supports asking the voters to 
take care of the roads because they cannot live in a community with the 
roads falling apart.  

    
Councilman Roecker said he agrees with the polling. He said he thinks the 
major questions they need to ask are whether to include open space and 
what to include in the capital needs. He said he agrees with Councilman 
Lamerson that it is absolutely critical to extend the 1% sales tax because 
they have to have that money to maintain roads.   

    
 



Prescott City Council Joint Study  
Session/Special Meeting – September 2, 2008                                                  Page 5 
 

Councilman Luzius said it is important to keep and extend the 1% sales 
tax and he thinks that an equal portion be maintained for open space.  

    
Mayor Wilson said that open space maintenance must be considered if 
the 1% sales tax is extended.   

    
Councilman Bell said he thinks they are all on board with consensus that 
they need to continue with the 1% sales tax extension. He said what he 
likes about that is they are not raising the tax at all.    

    
Mayor Wilson asked the Council for their thoughts about what sort of 
direction they need to give the City Manager regarding capital 
improvements.  

    
Councilman Roecker said he would like to see a polling of the citizens 
because there may be a couple of items that could be on the ballot.  

    
Mayor Wilson said one of the things that happened since they last 
discussed this is that the City has another piece of property as an option 
for expanding the Police Station.  He said that might be more palatable to 
the taxpayers.     

    
 Councilman Lamerson said that he agrees that things are the not same as 

they were three months ago, and they need to look at priorities. He is a 
public safety advocate and they need to give the management team clear 
and concise direction, looking to keep the community safe and look at 
short-term priorities. 

   
  Mayor Wilson said that one thing they discussed in the beginning was 

investigating all of the options with regard to bonding. He would like to 
take everything back to the City Manager. Councilman Lamerson said that 
there are a few different fire station options. One is to remodel some of 
what they have and he doesn’t believe they gave that option a fair shot. 

   
  Mr. Norwood said that they will bring back everything in November, 

including the capital needs, to see if there some project or projects they 
would like to advance further. Anything that will require people, i.e. 
Watson Lake Fire Station, they cannot fund.   

   
  Councilman Luzius reminded Councilman Lamerson that the swimming 

pool was not part of the $54 million discussed; it was taken off the slate.  
As far as the Fire Department, he thinks it is necessary for the City to have 
a streamlined station. 

   
 Councilman Bell asked Chief Oaks if the lack of a new facility for Police 

was impeding their ability to keep the City safe. Chief Oaks replied it was 



Prescott City Council Joint Study  
Session/Special Meeting – September 2, 2008                                                  Page 6 
 

not at this time.  Councilman Bell said that public safety is paramount in 
his thoughts as well. 

 
II. DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 

A. Adoption of Resolution No. 3906-0908 – A resolution of the Mayor and 
Council of the City of Prescott, Yavapai County, Arizona, accepting the 
Special Land Use Permit No. 23-103097-03 extension provided by the 
State of Arizona, Arizona State Land Department, for the special use of 
Badger Mountain for public safety communication operations for an 
additional five-year period and authorizing the execution of any and all 
documents to implement same. 

    
 Chief Oaks said that the issue is a request for a Special Use Permit for 

land on Badger Mountain. He said that the site is a very vital part of their 
communication infrastructure for Police and Fire, and will remain so until 
they are able to complete the ongoing communication infrastructure 
project.  They hope to complete that within the next two or three years.  At 
that point, this site should no longer be needed. This request is an 
extension of five years, and can be terminated upon 25-day written notice. 

   
 Mayor Wilson asked why it was coming before the Council as he thought 

this amount was under the delegation of the Chief. Chief Oaks said that he 
could approve it based on the money, but because of the nature of the 
lease it was his understanding it needed to come before Council.  Mr. Kidd 
said that was correct. 

 
 Brief discussion was held on the location of the tower and the 

determination of $4,500 a year for one acre. 
 

B. Update on Prescott Greenways Project and approval of new strategy. 
    
  Eric Smith gave an update on the Prescott Greenways Project, noting that 

there is a lot of new information since his last report nine months ago. He 
said that overall the project is continuing to go well and they have private 
property owners that are willing to donate easements. The memo 
described a lot of highlights and it appears that the project has regained a 
lot of the momentum it had back around 2001.   

 
  Mr. Smith said that they recently had some ADOT officials up because 

they have a Federal grant to expand this project. They were new ADOT 
officials that have not been exposed to the project before. One concern 
they brought up was regarding the City’s request for $1/2 million to meet 
AASHTO’s standards (American Association of State Highway 
Transportation Officials) which requires that if they are using Federal 
money they have to have trails that are upwards of 12-14 feet wide. In 



Prescott City Council Joint Study  
Session/Special Meeting – September 2, 2008                                                  Page 7 
 

some places they can do that, but they were concerned that where they 
are looking at building the Greenways Project is in some fairly tight 
corridors. They had concerns of the City being able to meet those 
standards. Another concern they had was they added additional 
environmental requirements needed to be complied with and told the City 
that ADOT is short staffed and everything the city does has to be 
approved by ADOT and it could take six to nine months to review 
documents.  They said that it would probably be another two years before 
the City could actually use grant funds to construct a trail. 

 
  As a result of this, they brought the Greenways Committee back together 

to talk about it. There was a desire that they want to see result sooner 
than 2010. Based on that, he presented a new strategy. The request 
would be to defer the grant to Phase 3, which is the Miller Creek Corridor 
going upstream to the Rodeo Grounds. They are still trying to secure right-
of-way along that corridor and the timing of the grant coincides a little 
better with the right-of-way process for Phase 3.  They would then do 
Phase 2 in-house.  They have the resources, materials, and volunteers, to 
do a lot of the work in the winter months when parks have slowed down.  
They may be able to get Embry-Riddle students come out three Saturdays 
in October and do quite a bit of the work. They also continue to use 
community service crews through the Police Department. 

 
  Mr. Smith said that the Principal at Mile High Middle School, Joe Howard, 

is so excited about the project that he doesn’t need the work to be limited 
to off-hours of school. They have Steve Morgan, a landscape architect, 
doing a design for Phase 2 right now. They would like to do a public open 
house the first week of October and unveil the design. It would run from 
Mile High Middle School downstream to the VA Hospital, Roughrider Park 
and Yavapai College.  At the same time, they don’t have all of the funding 
in house to do everything. They need more lights and some materials. 

 
  Mr. Smith said that Lisa Barnes, Executive Director of Prescott Alternative 

Transportation, and she is interested in writing some smaller grants and 
doing some fundraising from a non-profit standpoint to generate some 
additional monies for lights, etc. 

  
  Lisa Barnes said that through their Safe Routes to School Program, 

because the trail is going in front of Mile High, they could include trail 
development costs within their grant request to ADOT. 

   
  Councilman Roecker asked if they will magically solve the problems with 

the additional requirements of ADOT two years from now. Mr. Smith said 
that one of the new requirements is the fact that they are using school 
property, there is an environmental requirement that with the “taking”, they 
want to see public meetings, etc. even though the School Board is on 



Prescott City Council Joint Study  
Session/Special Meeting – September 2, 2008                                                  Page 8 
 

board. Also, there is another requirement having to do with noxious 
weeds. 

   
  Councilman Lamerson said that he visited some of the creeks the other 

day and anything they can do to make the route safer he supported, and 
he thanked Ms. Barnes and her group for being involved. 

   
  Mayor Wilson said that it appeared that the Council was on board with the 

proposed changes in strategy. 
 

C. Adoption of Ordinance No. 4666-0909 – An ordinance of the Mayor and 
Council of the City of Prescott, Yavapai County, Arizona, authorizing the 
acceptance of the dedication of two public trail easements for the Prescott 
Greenways Multi-Use Trail System from Prescott Unified School District 
for the stretch of Granite Creek through Mile-High Middle School and from 
Thos Etal Rusing, and Russell and Rosemary Rusing, for the area near 
Goodwin Street and authorizing the Mayor and City staff to execute any 
and all documents in order to effectuate said conveyance. 

  
  Mr. Smith said that they have been working with private property owners 

for trail easements, and they have had tremendous success with obtaining 
those easements.  He said that a few years back they had an agreement 
with the School District whereby they wanted to see a design of how it 
would go through the Mile High Middle School, and their donation of an 
easement was contingent upon that design. He said that they were able to 
take a design to them this year, and after a few changes, they have 
agreed to donate the public trail easement. In surveying the creek they 
found that a portion of the creek was owned by Russell Rusing and he 
was approached about an easement, and he has agreed. 

 
 D. Approval of payment to Prescott Chamber of Commerce for Annual 

Courthouse Lighting in the amount of $34,036.00. 
    
  Ms. Bristol said that when the bed tax increased from 2% to 3%, there was 

a new allocation considered by the Council, with the allocation split 
between the Parks and Recreation Department and marketing for events 
and the City. With the increase, the Council agreed in concept with the 
proposal that would give a little of the bed tax to several of the agencies 
that directly affected tourism, and one of those is the Prescott chamber of 
Commerce.  Their allocation was to be up to 5% of the bed tax collections 
from the previous year. In that case, if the Council agrees to that, the 
amount allocated would be $34,036, and it is available in the bed tax fund. 

   
  Mr. Norwood said that he wanted to emphasize that this is out of the bed 

tax; it cannot be used to hire police officers or do anything. It is legally 
restricted to this type of use. 



Prescott City Council Joint Study  
Session/Special Meeting – September 2, 2008                                                  Page 9 
 

   
  Mayor Wilson asked Mr. Maurer if he was still short $15,000. Mr. Maurer, 

Executive Director of the Prescott Chamber of Commerce, gave a brief 
update. Their goal is to maintain where they were last year, which was 
$72,000.To date, including the contribution from the City, they have 
$56,400.They have about $7,000 pending, leaving $8,600. They 
unexpectedly got a $1,250 donation in the mail so it is closer to $7,500.  
They are at about the same place they were last year.  They start going up 
next week.   

 
  Mr. Maurer said that it includes replacement bulbs for all of the City 

decorations, not just downtown. For the last four years the one addition 
they hope to make this year are the two Veteran Memorial areas they plan 
to light for a memorial for Gheral Brownlow for the many years that he 
provided the service to the City and County. Additionally, Cliff Petrovsky at 
Bashford Court donated for the next couple of months an advertising 
space when they first walk in the Court, a display space where donations 
can be given toward the Courthouse lighting. 

  
  Councilwoman Suttles said that the committee looked at how they could 

attack this year to do better, and with Gheral’s passing they decided to 
take the Montezuma side of the Veteran’s Statue.  She said that as the list 
shows, donors are down as well, and she is pleased to get a little more 
than last year. She asked if they are still $7,000 in the whole, how they 
make up for it. Mr. Maurer said that they will go with as much money as 
they have, and will keep going as they continue to receive donations. 

   
  Councilwoman Suttles said that they are extremely proud of the downtown 

lighting and they all need to make a better effort than normally because it 
states we are the Christmas City. 

   
  Councilman Luzius said that Prescott is Arizona’s Christmas City. He is 

hoping they can get the remaining funds needed. He said that perhaps Mr. 
Meredith could come up with the $7,500 if they could guarantee that there 
would be no “black hole” in front of his establishment. Also, he wanted to 
comment that if they had increased the bed tax to 4% as many wanted, 
the City’s portion would have been more. 

 
E.   Discussion and possible action on recommendations from the Mayor’s 

Immigration Issues Task force. 
   
 Mayor Wilson asked the members of the Task Force to come forward at 

which time he presented a plaque to them. A few members thanked the 
Mayor for putting the Task Force together to allow for some dialogue. 

 
  



Prescott City Council Joint Study  
Session/Special Meeting – September 2, 2008                                                  Page 10 
 

  Mayor Wilson said that they are not going to resolve the issue at the City 
level. The Committee has brought forward three recommendations:  
1) Ask the Prescott City Council to send a letter to the area state 
legislators representatives, Mason, Tobin and O’Halleran, and the Arizona 
U.S. Congressional delegation urging comprehensive immigration reform 
(outlined in attachment; 2) recommend the formation of a three-member 
City Immigration Advisory Committee. One member should be from the 
City, and Lt. Andrew Reinhardt is suggested as that member; the other 
two members would be appointed by the full Prescott City Council; and 
3) schedule a public meeting that would feature two speakers, Judith 
Gans, Director of Immigration Policy Center for the Udall Center for 
Studies in Public Policies at the University of Arizona to present her report: 
 Immigrants and the Arizona Fiscal and Economic Impact, and Yuma City 
Attorney Steven Moore speak on his city’s experience with immigration. 

    
 Councilwoman Lopas said that when the Council went down to the League 

Conference the Governor talked about what she was doing on 
immigration, and she would like to see the letter also sent to the Governor. 

   
 Councilwoman Suttles asked if the speakers would be at a Council 

meeting or at a different location. Mayor Wilson said that they were 
thinking of another venue, such as the Crossroads Center or Yavapai 
Performance Hall  He said that the main purpose was to provide a 
dialogue on some of the immigration issues from two different 
perspectives. 

   
 Mr. Oliverson, Chapter Leader of the Minutemen Civil Defense Corp in 

Prescott, said that he was a member of the Task Force and he is very 
disappointed with the three suggestions. They made some very 
aggressive suggestions that were not accepted by the Task Force. They 
had a lot of meetings and they thank the City staff for their time.  He said 
that the City is missing an opportunity to help itself. They disagree with the 
Mayor when he says it is a Federal issue.  He asks that the Mayor forward 
the suggestions to the Council. He said that they are going to back off and 
head to the border to try and keep some of them from coming up to 
Prescott.  Mayor Wilson said that all of those recommendations are public 
record. 

   
 Mr. Park said that one of the things that he questions is the letter that they 

are going to forward to the Congressional people, as it contains the word 
“comprehensive.” He said that the word “comprehensive” closed down the 
switchboard of the Capitol in Washington D.C. when the Senate was 
addressing this issue and they came up with a “comprehensive 
immigration package” that was nothing more than an amnesty.  The word 
“comprehensive” has become a code word for amnesty, so if they send 
such a letter he recommended that they change that wording. 



Prescott City Council Joint Study  
Session/Special Meeting – September 2, 2008                                                  Page 11 
 

street was done. Mr. Nietupski said that this segment was not improved 

 
   Councilman Lamerson asked that they not place this on the Consent 

Agenda. 
 
F. Adoption of Ordinance No. 4667-0910 – An ordinance of the Mayor and 

Council of the City of Prescott, Yavapai County, Arizona, authorizing the 
purchase of real property, temporary construction easement and 
improvements from Prescott Unified School District #1 for the widening of 
Williamson Valley Road, and authorizing the mayor and staff to execute 
any and all documents to effectuate said purchase. 

    
 Mr. Nietupski said that this is a request for an easement from the Prescott 

Unified School District for property of value for the widening of Williamson 
Valley Road, in the area between Shadow Valley Ranch Road and 
Sidewinder Road. 

   
 Councilwoman Suttles asked if this is the appraised value.  Mr. Nietupski 

said that the value is based on City’s purchase of the open space Nature 
Center purchase, at a value of $2.30 sq. ft.  Mayor Wilson said that he 
believes this is a little high. Councilman Luzius asked that it be taken off 
the Consent Agenda. 

   
 Councilman Roecker asked if it was too late to continue negotiations with 

the School District. Mr. Nietupski said that it would be the Council’s 
prerogative. Mr. Nietupski said that the basis for the improvements, 
vegetation, is based on the appraiser’s workbook which has certain values 
for specific types of vegetations. 

 
G. Award of bid for the Rosser Street Traffic Calming and Re-striping Project 

to Core 5 Construction LLC., in the amount of $73,335.15. 
    
 Mr. Nietupski said that this is for the Rosser Street traffic calming project, 

for which they received four bids. He then gave a brief history of the 
project. 

   
 Councilman Bell asked Mr. Nietupski to describe the calming details.  

Mr. Nietupski said that the calming involves a number of curb 
modifications in the way of medians and curb islands, with striping 
configurations. 

   
 Mayor Wilson said that they had a public presentation on this a few 

months back and the citizens were impressed. 
   

 Councilman Suttles said that they are going to pay over $73,000 for some 
calming. She asked if any of that was taken into consideration when the 



Prescott City Council Joint Study  
Session/Special Meeting – September 2, 2008                                                  Page 12 
 

  
 Councilman Luzius asked if the construction folks were going to 

 
. Award of bid for the McCormick Street Sidewalk Construction Project, 

   
Mr. Nietupski reviewed the project presented. Councilman Bell thanked 

   
 Councilwoman Suttles asked if the sidewalk was to enhance the 

 
 Authorization to purchase Airport Premises Liability insurance with Ace 

   
Sherry Swain said that the City’s insurance broker went out and received 

   
 Councilman Luzius asked why the premium went down and he was told 

   
 Councilman Roecker asked what they get for this premium. Ms. Swain 

 
. Authorization to proceed with an Environmental Risk Assessment with 

   
Ms. Swain said that this item is for an environmental risk assessment. It is 

   

with that in mind when it was built in the late 1990’s  This came about as a 
result of the connection of Rosser Street between Cliff Rose and Eagle 
Ridge. 

participate in funding since it was their trucks that caused the damage.  
Mr. Nietupski said that it is entirely on the City. 

H
Goodwin Street to the Pioneer Retirement Home Road, to Core 5 
Construction, LLC in the amount of $66,691.80. 

 
 

Mr. Nietupski for carrying the ball on the project. He said that Core 5 was 
considerably lower and he hopes they are able to fulfill the contract.   

pedestrian connectivity. Councilman Luzius said that there are a number 
of apartment buildings on that street and they can also use the sidewalk. 

I.
Property and Casualty Co. in the amount of $22,710.00 for FY09. 

 
 

four proposals for Airport Premises Liability insurance, two of which were 
competitive  Option A is renewing with Ace Property and Casualty.  It is a 
reduction of over $9,000 over last year’s premium.   

that the main factor is that the City no longer handles refueling at the 
airport. 

said that it is called a premises liability policy and it covers any third-party 
events that might happen at the airport, which could be anything like trips 
and fall.  She said that they have had no claims and do not have a 
deductible; it is a $50 million policy.   

J
Marsh in the amount of $42,250.00. 

 
 

something that has been in the works for about two years. In order to even 
look into purchasing an environmental policy it is necessary to first have 
an assessment completed. 



Prescott City Council Joint Study  
Session/Special Meeting – September 2, 2008                                                  Page 13 
 

 Councilwoman Suttles asked if they were just exploring the possibility of 

   
 Councilwoman Suttles asked if they have carried this policy before.  

   
 Councilwoman Lopas said that being in Real Estate they often deal with 

  
 Councilman Lamerson asked if they were talking the natural environment, 

 
Ms. Swain said that if there is something that the City has contributed to 

 
of Public Hearing (September 9) and consideration of a liquor 

 
Ms. Carlson reviewed the liquor license application, noting that the 

 
L. Rescheduling of November 11, 2008 City Council Meeting to November 

 
It was noted that November 11, 2008 is a holiday and staff was 

the November 11, 2008 meeting and combine it with the 18  meeting. 

an environmental policy. Ms. Swain said that in order to see if they want to 
purchase a policy they have to do the assessment.  It includes site visits, 
discussion with department heads around the city, looking at contractual 
obligations.   

Ms. Swain said that they have not, and she has talked with other entities 
and nearly all of them are getting them.   

Phase 1 studies. In the past ADEQ used to have a funding source so if 
there was a property that needed some type of clean up they assisted, but 
that program has sunsetted, so they have to be self-insured. She said that 
the insurance is chapter in the long run. 

not artificial environment. Councilman Roecker asked how this would 
actually help the City.  Ms. Swain said that it could cover any type of 
contamination. Mayor Wilson said that they made a major purchase of the 
rodeo grounds which they need to look at, because they have been sitting 
out there undermaintained. 

 
then it is something they have to make sure they are covered for.  
Mr. Kidd said that this is an area they started looking at a few years ago.  
It is a gap in their current coverage. 
 

K.  Notice 
license application from Carla Roberts, Applicant for Jazzy’s Wine, LLC, 
for a Series 06, All Spirituous Liquor Bar, license for Jazzy’s Wine Bar 
located at 219 North Cortez Street, Suite D. 

property has been posted and there have been no comments received 
from the public. She said that the applicant has been requested to attend 
the public hearing next week. 

12, 2008, due to a National Holiday, Veterans Day, on November 11, 
2008. 

 
recommending that the meeting be moved to Wednesday. Council 
discussed and agreed to place this item on the Consent Agenda, to cancel 

th



Prescott City Council Joint Study  
Session/Special Meeting – September 2, 2008                                                  Page 14 
 

 
M. ing 

with the Prescott Unified School District of August 26, 2008, and the 

   
N.  of 

September 9, 2008. 

es reported that the items to be placed on the 
Consent Agenda were A, C, D, G, H, I, J, and M. 

III. ADJO
 

ncil Study Session of September 2, 2008, adjourned at 
4:50 p.m. 

SPECIAL MEETING 
 
1.  Call to Order. 

 Session of the Prescott City Council was called to order at 
5:02 p.m. in the Downtown Conference Room. 

2. 

O RECESS INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION; 
SECONDED BY COUNCILMAN LAMERSON; PASSED UNANIMOUSLY. 

3. 

tion for legal advice with the attorney or attorneys of 
the public body and discussion or consultation with the attorneys of the 

 
  
 

Approval of the Minutes of the Prescott City Council Joint Special Meet

Combined Study Session/Regular Voting Meeting of August 26, 2008.  

Selection of items to be placed on the Regular Voting Meeting Agenda
 

 
Councilwoman Suttl

 
URNMENT 

The Prescott City Cou

 

 
 The Executive

 
Recess into Executive Session. 

 
 MAYOR WILSON MOVED T

 
EXECUTIVE SESSION: 

 
A.  Discussion or consulta

public body in order to consider its position and instruct its attorneys 
regarding the public body's position regarding contracts that are the 
subject of negotiations, in pending or contemplated litigation or in 
settlement discussions conducted in order to avoid or resolve litigation, 
pursuant to A.R.S. §§38-431.03(A)(3) and (4). 

1. Big Chino Water Ranch. 

 
 
 
 



Prescott City Council Joint Study  
Session/Special Meeting – September 2, 2008                                                  Page 15 
 

. Adjournment. 

ouncil reconvened into Open Session at 6:08 p.m. at which 
time the meeting adjourned. 

 

 
     ____________________________________ 

      JACK D. WILSON, Mayor 

TTEST: 

_____________________________ 
LIZABETH A. BURKE, City Clerk 

 
4
 
 The Prescott City C

 

 

 

 
 
A
 
 
_
E
 


